Public Document Pack

Blackpool Council

5 January 2018

To: Councillors Collett, Hobson, Hunter, Hutton, Robertson BEM, Mrs Scott and Singleton

The above members are requested to attend the:

PUBLIC PROTECTION SUB-COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 16 January 2018 at 6.00 pm in Committee Room A, Town Hall, Blackpool

AGENDA

ADMISSION OF THE PUBLIC TO COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The Head of Democratic Governance has marked with an asterisk (*) those items where the Committee may need to consider whether the public should be excluded from the meeting as the items are likely to disclose exempt information.

The nature of the exempt information is shown in brackets after the item.

1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members are asked to declare any interests in the items under consideration and in doing so state:

- (1) the type of interest concerned either a
 - (a) personal interest
 - (b) prejudicial interest
 - (c) disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI)

and

(2) the nature of the interest concerned

If any member requires advice on declarations of interests, they are advised to contact the Head of Democratic Governance in advance of the meeting.

2 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 12 DECEMBER 2017 (Pages 1 - 4)

To agree the minutes of the last meeting held on 12 December 2017 as a true and

* 3 PRIVATE HIRE AND HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVERS LICENCES

(Pages 5 - 30)

(This item contains personal information regarding applicants and licence holders which is exempt from publication by virtue of Paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972)

* 4 HACKNEY CARRIAGE VEHICLE LICENCES

(Pages 31 - 48)

(This item contains personal information regarding applicants and licence holders which is exempt from publication by virtue of Paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972)

5 REVIEW OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE CRIMINAL CONVICTIONS' POLICY

(Pages 49 - 68)

6 DATE OF NEXT MEETING

To note the date of the next meeting as 6 February 2018.

Venue information:

First floor meeting room (lift available), accessible toilets (ground floor), no-smoking building.

Other information:

For queries regarding this agenda please contact Chris Williams, Democratic Governance Adviser, Tel: (01253) 477153, e-mail chris.williams@blackpool.gov.uk

Copies of agendas and minutes of Council and committee meetings are available on the Council's website at www.blackpool.gov.uk.

Agenda Item 2

MINUTES OF PUBLIC PROTECTION SUB-COMMITTEE MEETING - TUESDAY, 12 DECEMBER 2017

Present:			
Councillor Hutton (in the Chair)			
Councillors			
Collett	Humphreys	D Scott	Mrs Scott

In Attendance:

Mrs Sharon Davies, Head of Licensing Service Mr Chris Williams, Democratic Services Adviser

Apologies:

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Singleton who was elsewhere on Council business.

1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

During consideration of the case of Hackney Carriage applicant S.R, Councillor Scott became aware that he knew the applicant as he had worked with him in a professional capacity and therefore declared a prejudicial interest.

Councillor Scott left the meeting for the remainder of the case and took no part in the discussion and subsequent vote.

2 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 7 NOVEMBER 2017

The Sub-Committee considered the minutes of the meeting held on 7 November 2017.

Resolved:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 7 November 2017 be approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

3 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

Resolved: That under Section 100 (A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the whole item, including the decisions referred to at Agenda item 3 on the grounds that it would involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

MINUTES OF PUBLIC PROTECTION SUB-COMMITTEE MEETING - TUESDAY, 12 DECEMBER 2017

4 PRIVATE HIRE AND HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVERS LICENCES

The Sub-Committee was informed of four applicants who had given sufficient cause for concern as to be referred to the Sub-Committee for consideration.

Members discussed the applications as follows:

(i) G.L (New Private Hire applicant)

Mr Luke Andrews, Licensing Officer, was in attendance and presented the Authority's case. He advised that the applicant had a significant number of previous convictions for a wide range of offences from theft and dishonesty to violence which had occurred over a period of decades. In addition, only a single offence had been declared on the application to be licensed.

G.L was in attendance and made representations to the Sub-Committee. He acknowledged and accepted he had made poor choices earlier in his life and explained he had committed many of the offences whilst intoxicated as he was an alcoholic for many years. In relation to not declaring some of his convictions, he advised that he had made a mistake and wanted to put his past behind him. He further suggested that he had received an offer of work from a local taxi operator and highlighted that he had not been convicted of an offence since 1992.

Members discussed the case and had a number of reservations about the frequency, total number and nature of the applicant's offences. In addition, some Members felt that the lack of a detailed explanation regarding non-declaration on the application was of concern. However, the applicant had also demonstrated remorse and appeared to have made a number of positive lifestyle choices that had resulted in no further offending behaviour in over two decades.

Resolved:

- 1. To not prosecute for non-disclosure of offences on the application to be licensed.
- 2. To grant the Private Hire Vehicle Driver's Licence with the addition of a severe warning letter in relation to future conduct indicating that if the driver were brought before the Sub-Committee again, suspension or revocation would be the likely outcome.

NOTE: MOTION MOVED, SECONDED, VOTED UPON AND LOST

During consideration of the above item, the following motion was moved, seconded, voted upon and lost:

'That the application for a Private Hire Vehicle Driver licence be refused on the grounds that the applicant was not a fit and proper person to be licensed.'

MINUTES OF PUBLIC PROTECTION SUB-COMMITTEE MEETING - TUESDAY, 12 DECEMBER 2017

(ii) S.R.P (New Hackney Carriage applicant)

The applicant was in attendance and described the incident which had resulted in him being called before the Sub-Committee. Despite being charged with battery and dismissed from his employment as a result, S.R.P claimed that whilst unfortunate, the incident had occurred during the course of his normal duties. He added that the fact he knew the victim was purely coincidental and he did not report the incident at the time as he felt it did not merit police action.

Mr Andrews reminded the Sub-Committee of the policy regarding the amount of time elapsed since an applicant's last offence.

Members were concerned about the nature of the offence the circumstances surrounding the incident. In addition, the applicant appeared to make several poor choices that possibly made the situation worse. Ultimately, the Sub-Committee did not see any exceptional circumstances that would cause them to deviate from the policy guidelines on this occasion.

Resolved: That the application for a Hackney Carriage Licence be refused on the grounds that the applicant was not a fit and proper person to be licensed.

(iii) S.R (New Private Hire applicant)

Mr Andrews presented the Authority's case. It was reported that the applicant had served a considerable custodial sentence for his part in a serious historical drug offence.

The applicant described the offence and suggested that he was relatively young at the time and along with his parents who were also involved, had made some poor decisions which he seriously regretted and displayed remorse. He added that in his opinion, he had changed his life significantly and circulated a number of documents that purported to evidence the applicant's professional career and work in support of charities.

The Sub-Committee considered the case and expressed concerns at the nature of the applicant's offence and his subsequent period of imprisonment. However, it was agreed that a significant period of time had elapsed since the incident and the applicant displayed remorse. In addition, S.R had evidenced a successful career following his release from custody and had been involved in helping the community.

Resolved:

To grant the Private Hire Vehicle Licence with the addition of a warning letter in relation to future conduct indicating that if the applicant were brought before the Sub-Committee again, suspension or revocation would be the likely outcome.

MINUTES OF PUBLIC PROTECTION SUB-COMMITTEE MEETING - TUESDAY, 12 DECEMBER 2017

NOTE: During consideration of the case of Hackney Carriage applicant S.R, Councillor Scott became aware that he knew the applicant as he had worked with him in a professional capacity and therefore declared a prejudicial interest. He left the meeting for the remainder of the case and took no part in the determination and subsequent vote.

(iv) S.R.S (New Hackney Carriage applicant)

Mr Andrews informed Members that the applicant had a number of historical convictions for motoring offences including one for dishonesty and another for drink driving. In addition, the applicant had failed to declare some of those offences on the application to be licensed.

The applicant explained that the offences had been from many years ago and he expressed regret for his actions. He also informed the Sub-Committee that he had held a number of employment positions including driving jobs since those convictions. He added that he felt the non-declaration was an honest mistake.

During subsequent discussions, the Sub-Committee voiced concerns about the nature of the offences and the non-declaration on the application to be licensed. However, given the significant amount of time since the offences and the applicant's demonstration of remorse, Members were inclined to grant the licence with the subject to the inclusion of a warning letter.

Resolved:

- 1. To not prosecute for non-disclosure of offences on the application to be licensed.
- 2. To grant the Hackney Carriage Licence with the addition of a severe warning letter in relation to future conduct indicating that if the applicant were brought before the Sub-Committee again, suspension or revocation would be the likely outcome.

Background papers: exempt

5 DATE OF NEXT MEETING

To note the date of the next meeting as 16 January 2018.

Chairman

(The meeting ended at 7.30 pm)

Any queries regarding these minutes, please contact: Chris Williams Democratic Governance Adviser

Tel: (01253) 477153

E-mail: chris.williams@blackpool.gov.uk

Report to:	PUBLIC PROTECTION SUB-COMMITTEE
Relevant Officer:	Mark Marshall, Head of Licensing Service
Date of Meeting	16 January 2018

PRIVATE HIRE AND HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVERS LICENCES

1.0 Purpose of the report:

1.1 To consider applicants and licence holders who have been convicted of offences or who have otherwise given reasons for concern.

2.0 Recommendation(s):

2.1 The Sub-Committee will be requested to determine the applications and referrals as appropriate.

3.0 Reasons for recommendation(s):

- 3.1 Licensed drivers can be responsible for transporting vulnerable passengers. It is important for the protection of the public that only fit and proper persons are licensed.
- 3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by the Council?
- 3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council's approved Yes budget?
- 3.3 Other alternative options to be considered:

None, as the Sub-Committee is required to determine the applications and referrals.

4.0 Council Priority:

4.1 The relevant Council Priority is "The Economy: Maximising growth and opportunity across Blackpool"

5.0 Background Information

5.1 The Sub-Committee is asked to determine whether or not the applicants and licence

	Vehicle driver's licence, in respect of the following cases:	
	D.J.L (New Private Hire Vehicle Driver Applicant), M.A.C (New Private Hire Vehicle Driver Applicant), M.S.L (New Private Hire Vehicle Driver Applicant), S.W (Existing Hackney Carriage Driver), V.S.B (Existing Hackney Carriage Driver)	
5.2	Details of offences or matters causing concern and any supporting documents are attached at Appendix 3(a).	
5.3	Does the information submitted include any exempt information?	es/
5.4	List of Appendices:	
	Appendix 3(a) Details of cases (not for publication)	
6.0	Legal considerations:	
6.1	The Sub-Committee must be satisfied that the applicants and licence holders are fit and proper persons to be licensed.	•
6.2	There is the right of appeal to the Magistrates' Court.	
7.0	Human Resources considerations:	
7.1	None	
8.0	Equalities considerations:	
8.1	None	
9.0	Financial considerations:	
9.1	None	
10.0	Risk management considerations:	
10.1	None	
11.0	Ethical considerations:	
11.1	None	

holders are fit and proper persons to hold a Hackney Carriage and Private Hire

- 12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken:
- 12.1 None
- 13.0 Background papers:
- 13.1 None



Report to:	PUBLIC PROTECTION SUB-COMMITTEE
Relevant Officer:	Mark Marshall, Head of Licensing Service
Date of Meeting	16 January 2018

HACKNEY CARRIAGE VEHICLE LICENCE

1.0 Purpose of the report:

- 1.1 To consider whether or not the licence holders are fit and proper persons to hold a Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence.
- 2.0 Recommendation(s):
- 2.1 The Sub-Committee will be requested to determine the referrals as appropriate.
- 3.0 Reasons for recommendation(s):
- 3.1 Licensed vehicles are responsible for transporting passengers. It is important for the protection of the public that only suitable vehicles that are fit for purpose are licensed.
- 3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by the Council?
- 3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council's approved Yes budget?
- 3.3 Other alternative options to be considered:

None

4.0 Council Priority:

4.1 The relevant Council Priority is

"The Economy: Maximising growth and opportunity across Blackpool"

	5.0	Background	Information
--	-----	------------	-------------

5.1 The Sub-Committee is asked to determine whether or not the licence holders are fit and proper persons to hold a Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence, in respect of the following cases:

F.P.L (Existing Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence holder) R.P (Existing Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence holder), A.H.B (Existing Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence holder)

- 5.2 Matters causing concern and any supporting documents are attached at Appendix 4(a)
- 5.3 Does the information submitted include any exempt information?

Yes

List of Appendices:

Appendix 4(a) Details of case (not for publication)

- 6.0 Legal considerations:
- 6.1 The Sub-Committee must be satisfied that conditions on the licence are imposed or removed only as reasonably necessary.
- 6.2 There is the right of appeal to the Magistrates' Court.
- 7.0 Human Resources considerations:
- 7.1 None
- 8.0 Equalities considerations:
- 8.1 None
- 9.0 Financial considerations:
- 9.1 None
- 10.0 Risk management considerations:
- 10.1 None

- 11.0 Ethical considerations:
- 11.1 None
- 12.0 Internal/External Consultation undertaken:
- 12.1 None
- 13.0 Background papers
- 13.1 None



Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2016

Appendix G – Exceptional Quality Policy

Vehicles must meet minimum emissions standards with reference to the year of manufacture.

- 1. The vehicle must pass the initial pit test vehicles with four or fewer faults (excluding consumables see guidance notes) will be permitted to undertake the necessary repairs and submit for a re-test; vehicles with five or more faults will fail and will not be permitted a re-test; and
- 2. The vehicle must meet the full exterior and interior specification detailed below (each point listed below would constitute one defect). Vehicles with five or fewer defects as detailed below will be permitted to undertake necessary repairs and submit for a re-test. Vehicles with six or more defects will fail, and will not be permitted a re-test.

Exterior

- All bodywork to be clean and sound, free from rust, corrosion, dents, scrapes or significant scratches
 or loose panels.
- All paintwork must be in good condition when the vehicle is viewed in normal light conditions
- All wheel trims to be fitted according to the manufacturer's specification and all matched
- Door or wing mirrors to be in good condition. 2 wing mirrors and an interior mirror are required.
- Front and rear registration plates to be clean, clear, unbroken and conform to the relevant legislation. Hinging rear number plates must be maintained so that the number plate is visible at all times.
- Front and rear bumpers to have no rust, corrosion, dents, cracks or scrapes and be securely fitted.
 End caps must be fitted
- Mud flaps, if fitted should be maintained
- No broken, cracked or missing glass or surrounds on all front and rear lights where fitted and must display the correct colour
- Radiator grills should be secure and the original specification
- Windscreen and rear screen wiper arms should be in good condition and rust free and properly fitted
- All door locks and boot locks fitted to be in working order
- All doors should be easily opened and in good working order
- All door handles should be properly fitted easily operated and of original specification
- A spare wheel which conforms to legal requirements must be carried and securely fitted along with the relevant jack and wheel brace
- All tyres to conform to legal requirements

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2016

- All road wheels to be clean and free from significant marks or damage
- Vehicle to have a current MOT certificate or certificate of compliance
- Evidence of servicing and maintenance over the last twelve months must be produced.

Interior

- All seats to be manufacturer's original design, should match, be securely fitted with no holes or tears,
- All seat belts should be clean, in good working order. There must be sufficient seatbelts to cover
 every licensed seat. All anchorage point covers should be properly fitted and match original trim
- All panels should be clean and match original trim
- Fitted carpets should be of original specification, securely fitted with no rips or holes
- All instruments and accessories should be fitted securely, match trim and be in good working order.
- Headlining to be clean with no holes or tears (unless repaired)
- All windows to operate correctly and easily
- Brake, clutch and accelerator pedal rubbers to be fitted and in good condition
- The inside of the vehicle should be free from any trailing or loose wires
- The boot and/or luggage space should be clean and tidy with an unstained carpet or cover to manufacturer's specification
- If a hatchback, the boot cover must be original with both lifting straps fitted. A cargo guard should be fitted in estate vehicles
- Gear lever gaiters, if fitted, should be in good condition
- All lights should be in working order with appropriate covers securely fitted
- Window locks, handles where provided by the manufacturer to be in working order
- Heated rear screen to be in proper working order.
- Ramps, if fitted must be in good working order.

Guidance notes

Mot items – Any individual fault which would cause the vehicle to fail the standard MOT test will count as one fault. For example a leaking brake cylinder and a bald tyre are **2 faults**.

Interior and exterior faults – as a general rule, each defect identified during the inspection will count as one fault, however multiple faults of an identical nature will count as one fault. For example – holes in two seats will count as one fault. Similarly, dents found on two separate panels will count as one fault.

Fixing – all trim should be present, correctly aligned and fixed in accordance with the manufacturer's specification.

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2016

Poor Workmanship – repairs should be carried out to a high standard. Defects resulting from poor preparation or poor application of a paint finish are likely to result in the vehicle not reaching the required standard. Such defects may include runs, dust in the paint, orbital sander marks, poor paint coverage and overspray.

Gloss Finish – Paintwork should have a gloss finish over the whole vehicle. Where the paintwork has begun to fade due to age and the effects of ultraviolet degradation over large areas of the vehicle, where it cannot be returned to an acceptable gloss level by the use of cutting compounds refinishing may be required.

Replacement panels – vehicles which have been damaged and had replacement panels fitted are acceptable as hackney carriage and private hire vehicles provided that

- The repairs have been carried out to a high standard
- The replacement panel has been fitted to the vehicle manufacturer's specification using approved fittings, and
- The replacement panel has been correctly aligned, level with all adjacent panels. The gaps between panels should be uniform and similar to those between original panels.

Appeals

Where a proprietor is aggrieved by the decision of a vehicle tester concerning the standard of the vehicle, the initial appeal shall be to the mechanics supervisor. In the event that the proprietor remains aggrieved, a further appeal will lie to Steve Fulton CMU manager.

Further details of the appeals process are available on request.

Definition of consumables

The following items will not be counted as faults, but should be rectified as soon as reasonably practicable:

- Light bulbs not working
- No fire extinguisher
- No fare card on display
- Absence of vehicle signage
- A missing licence plate
- Taxi meter not operating correctly



Report to:	PUBLIC PROTECTION SUB-COMMITTEE
Relevant Officer:	Mark Marshall, Head of Licensing Service
Date of Meeting	16 January 2018

REVIEW OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE CRIMINAL CONVICTIONS' POLICY

1.0 Purpose of the report:

1.1 To consider proposed amendments to the Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Criminal Convictions Policy.

2.0 Recommendation(s):

- 2.1 To consider the policy and the proposed amendments as outlined in Appendix 5(a).
- 2.2 To recommend to the Executive that they adopt the proposed amendments.

3.0 Reasons for recommendation(s):

- 3.1a The Sub-Committee has previously authorised a period of consultation on the proposed changes. All of responses received were supportive of the amendments
- 3.1b Any amendments to the Policy must be approved by the Executive
- 3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by the Council?
- 3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council's approved Yes budget?
- 3.3 Other alternative options to be considered:

The Sub-Committee could decide to not review the policy after two years. However, this would not be considered good practice.

4.0 Council Priority:

4.1 The relevant Council Priority is "The Economy: Maximising growth and opportunity across Blackpool"

5.1	The Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Policy has been in force in its current form since 2015.	
5.2	Over time officers noted a number of omissions, anomalies and areas where the criminal convictions section of the policy could be strengthened.	
5.3	The Sub-Committee considered proposed amendments to the convictions policy at its meeting on 7 November 2017, made some changes and authorised a period of consultation with the trade. The consultation document is at Appendix 5(a)	
5.4	Consultation took place until 3 January 2018. Two responses were received both supporting the changes. The responses are at Appendix 5(b)	
5.5	Does the information submitted include any exempt information?	No
5.6	List of Appendices:	
	Appendix 5(a) Proposed Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Licensing Criminal Convictions' Policy.	
	Appendix 5(b) Consultation responses.	
6.0	Legal considerations:	
6.1	None	
7.0	Human Resources considerations:	
7.1	None	
8.0	Equalities considerations:	
8.1	None	
9.0	Financial considerations:	
9.1	None	
10.0	Risk management considerations:	
10.1	None	

5.0

Background Information

- 11.0 Ethical considerations:
- 11.1 None
- 12.0 Internal/External Consultation undertaken:
- 12.1 None
- **13.0** Background papers:
- 13.1 None



Appendix 5(a) Taxi and PHV Licensing Criminal Convictions' Policy

1. Introduction

- 1.1 The purpose of this policy is to provide guidance on the criteria taken into account by the council when determining whether or not an applicant or an existing licence holder is a fit and proper person to hold a hackney carriage and/or private hire vehicle licence. Whilst criminal convictions will play a significant part in the licensing authority's determination on whether an individual is fit and proper or not, the Council will also take into account other factors such as demeanour, general character, non-criminal behaviour, driving ability, complaints and other police information etc.
- 1.2 The overriding aim of the licensing authority is to protect the safety of the public. The licensing authority is concerned to ensure:
 - That a person is a fit and proper person.
 - That the person does not pose a threat to the public.
 - That the public are safeguarded from dishonest persons.
 - The safeguarding of children, young persons and vulnerable adults.
- 1.3 The term "fit and proper person" for the purposes of licensing is not legally defined. When determining whether a person is fit and proper to hold a licence, those tasked with determining applications are effectively asking the following question:

"Would you allow your son or daughter, spouse or partner, mother or father, grandson or granddaughter or any other person for whom you care, to get into a vehicle with this person alone?"

If the answer to the question is an unqualified yes, then the person can be considered to be fit and proper. If there are any doubts in the minds of those who make the decision then further consideration should be given as to whether a licence should be granted to that person.

In assessing whether someone is "fit and proper" the Council will consider the following together with any other relevant information:

- Criminality
- Human rights
- Period of holding a driver's licence
- Number of penalty points endorsed on driving licence

- Right to work
- Medical fitness
- Standard of driving/driving ability
- Conduct of the applicant in making the application (e.g. whether they have acted with integrity during the application process)
- Previous licensing history of existing and former licence holders
- Previous complaints about a driver including whether the complaints demonstrate a pattern of conduct which causes concern.

In addition the Council will also consider further information provided by sources such as the Police (including abduction notices), Children and Adult Safeguarding Boards and other statutory agencies.

- 1.4 This policy provides guidance to any person with an interest in hackney carriage and private hire licensing. In particular, but not exclusively:
 - Applicants for drivers' licenses
 - Existing licensed drivers whose licences are being reviewed
 - Licensing officers
 - Members of the Public Protection Sub-Committee
 - Magistrates hearing appeals against local authority decisions
- 1.5 Where licensing officers have delegated powers to grant licences, they will utilise these guidelines when making a decision to grant a licence. In all other cases applications for licences will be referred to the Public Protection Sub-Committee. Whilst officers and the Sub-Committee will have regard to the guidelines contained in the policy, each case will be considered on its individual merits and, where the circumstances demand, the committee/officer may depart from the guidelines.
- 1.6 In this policy the word "conviction" is to be defined as including convictions, cautions, warnings, reprimands and other relevant information.

2. General policy

2.1 There may be occasions where it is appropriate to depart from the guidelines, for example where the offence is a one-off occasion or there are mitigating circumstances or alternatively where there are many or continuous offences which may show a pattern of offending and unfitness.

The standards and criteria set out in below are those that will normally be applied to applications and licences. The Council may depart from these criteria however it must only do so in exceptional circumstances. The otherwise good character and driving record of the applicant or licence holder will not normally be considered as exceptional circumstances.

- 2.2 A person with a conviction for a serious offence need not be automatically barred from obtaining a licence, but would normally be expected to:
 - a. Remain free of conviction for an appropriate period; and
 - b. Show adequate evidence that her or she is a fit and proper person to hold a licence (the onus is on the applicant to produce such evidence).
 (Simply remaining free of conviction may not generally be regarded as adequate evidence that a person is a fit and proper person to hold a licence).
- 2.3 Where an applicant has been convicted of a criminal offence, the licensing authority cannot review the merits of the conviction [Nottingham City Council v. Mohammed Farooq (1998)].
- 2.4 Where an individual has had an application refused or a licence revoked the Public Protection Sub-Committee will normally refuse any subsequent application made within 12months of the previous refusal or revocation unless there has been a substantial material change in the individual's circumstances. Applications received more than 12 months after the refusal/revocation will be considered in accordance with this policy.

3 Appeals

- 3.1 Any applicant refused a driver's licence on the grounds that the licensing authority is not satisfied he is a fit and proper person to hold such a licence has a right to appeal to the Magistrates' Court within 21 days of the notice of refusal [Local Government Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1976, s 77 (1)].
- 3.2 Any applicant refused an operator licence on the grounds that the licensing authority is not satisfied he is a fit and proper person to hold such a licence has a right to appeal to the Magistrates' Court within 21 days of the notice of refusal.
- 3.3 Any licensee whose licence is suspended or revoked has a right to appeal to the Magistrates' Court within 21 days of the notice of suspension or revocation.

4. Powers

- 4.1 Section 61 and Section 62 of the Local Government Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1976 allow the licensing authority to suspend, revoke or refuse to renew a licence if the application/licence holder has been convicted of an offence involving dishonesty, indecency, violence; failure to comply with the provisions of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847; failure to comply with the provisions of Part II of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976; or any other reasonable cause.
- 4.2 The Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 (Exceptions)(Amendment) Order 2002, allows the licensing authority to take into account all convictions recorded against an applicant or the holder of a private hire vehicle or hackney carriage driver's licence, whether

spent or not. Therefore the licensing authority will have regard to all relevant convictions, particularly where there is a long history of offending or a recent pattern of repeat offending.

4.3 In this policy the term "disqualification" refers to the period served, in order to take account of the fact that a court may reduce the period of disqualification from driving. An applicant must provide evidence in advance to prove that the court agreed a reduction in the period of disqualification.

5. Consideration of disclosed criminal history

- 5.1 Under the provisions of Sections 51, 55, and 59, Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, the licensing authority is required to ensure that an applicant for the grant or renewal of a hackney carriage and/or a private hire vehicle drivers' licence and/or private hire vehicle operators licence is a 'fit and proper' person to hold such a licence. However, if an applicant has any convictions, warnings, cautions or charges awaiting trial, the licensing authority will look into:
 - How relevant the offence(s) are to the licence being applied for
 - How serious the offence(s) were
 - When the offence(s) were committed
 - The date of conviction
 - Circumstances of the individual concerned
 - Sentence imposed by the court
 - The applicant's age at the time of conviction.
 - Whether they form part of a pattern of offending
 - Any other character check considered reasonable (e.g. personal references)
 - Any other factors that might be relevant for example
 - The previous conduct of an existing or former licence holder including any complaints received
 - Whether the applicant has intentionally misled the Council or lied as part of the application process
 - Information provided by other agencies/Council departments
- 5.2 Existing holders of drivers' licences are required to notify the licensing authority in writing within seven days of being arrested, receiving a driving licence endorsement, fixed penalty notice or criminal conviction (including cautions).
- 5.3 Applicants can discuss further what effect a caution/conviction may have on any application by contacting the licensing office on 01253 478343 in confidence for advice.
- 5.4 The licensing authority conducts enhanced disclosures from the Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) of any applicant for a driver licence. The licensing authority follows the

DBS's Code of Practice on the fair use of disclosure information. A copy is available on request.

- 5.5 Applicants applying for the grant or a renewal of a drivers' licence and/or operator licence will be required to obtain an enhanced disclosure at their expense. The licensing authority abides by the DBS's Policy on the secure storage, handling, use, retention and disposal of disclosure information, which is available on request.
- 5.6 The licensing authority is also entitled to use other records and information that may be available to it in determining applications or an entitlement to continue holding a licence. This may include information held by the licensing authority or other licensing authorities, and information disclosed by the police.
- 5.7 It is an offence for any person knowingly or recklessly to make a false declaration or to omit any material particular in giving information required by the application for a licence. Where an applicant has made a false statement or a false declaration on their application for the grant or renewal of a licence, the licence will normally be refused.
- 5.8 For renewal applications and current licence holders the policy will not be applied retrospectively where there are no new concerns or convictions. The policy will be applied to existing licence holders if any additional convictions are incurred or they are otherwise brought to the attention of the Council for conduct that would call into question a person's suitability to hold a licence.
- 5.9 Offences not covered by this Policy will be considered by the Council when determining whether the applicant/licensed driver is a fit and proper person.

6 Serious offences involving violence

- 6.1 Licensed drivers have close regular contact with the public. A firm line is to be taken with those who have convictions for offences involving violence. An application will normally be refused if the applicant has a conviction for an offence that involved the loss of life.
- 6.2 In other cases anyone of a violent disposition will normally be refused to be licensed until at least 3 years free of such conviction. However, given the range of the offences that involve violence, consideration must be given to the nature of the conviction.
- 6.3 Unless there are exceptional circumstances a licence will not normally be granted where the applicant has a conviction for an offence such as:
 - Murder
 - Manslaughter

- Manslaughter or culpable homicide while driving
- Terrorism offences
- Or any similar offences (including attempted or conspiracy to commit) offences which replace the above
- 6.4 A licence will not normally be granted where the applicant has a conviction for an offence or similar offence to those below and the conviction is less than 10 years prior to the date of application:
 - Arson
 - Malicious wounding or grievous bodily harm which is racially aggravated
 - Actual bodily harm which is racially aggravated
 - Grievous bodily harm with intent
 - Robbery
 - Possession of firearm
 - Riot
 - Assault Police
 - Common assault with racially aggravated
 - Violent disorder
 - Resisting arrest
 - Or any similar offences (including attempted or conspiracy to commit) offences which replace the above
- 6.5 A licence will not normally be granted where the applicant has a conviction for an offence or similar offence to those below and the conviction is less than 5 years prior to the date of application:
 - Racially-aggravated criminal damage
 - Racially-aggravated offence
 - Or any similar offences (including attempted or conspiracy to commit) offences which replace the above
- 6.6 A licence will not normally be granted where the applicant has a conviction for an offence or similar offence(s) which replace the below offences and the conviction is less than 3 years prior to the date of application:
 - Common assault
 - Assault occasioning actual bodily harm
 - Affray
 - S5 Public Order Act 1986 offence (harassment, alarm or distress)
 - S.4 Public Order Act 1986 offence (fear of provocation of violence)
 - S4A Public Order Act 1986 offence (intentional harassment, alarm or distress)
 - Obstruction
 - Criminal damage
 - Or any similar offences (including attempted or conspiracy to commit) offences which replace the above

- 6.7 A licence will not normally be granted if an applicant has more than one conviction in the last 10 years for an offence of a violent nature.
- 6.8 In the event of a licence being granted, a strict warning both verbally and in writing should be administered.

7. Possession of a weapon

- 7.1 If an applicant has been convicted of possession of a weapon or any other weapon related offence, this will give serious concern as to whether the person is fit to carry the public.
- 7.2 Depending on the circumstances of the offence, an applicant should be free of conviction for 3 years (or at least 3 years must have passed since the completion of the sentence, whichever is longer), before a licence is granted.

8. Sex and indecency offences

- 8.1 As licensed drivers often carry unaccompanied and vulnerable passengers, applicants with convictions for sexual offences must be closely scrutinized. Those with convictions for the more serious sexual offences will generally be refused. For other offences, applicants will be expected to show a substantial period (normally at least 5 years) free of conviction for such offences before a licence will be granted. All sexual and indecency offences will be considered as serious
- 8.2 Unless there are exceptional circumstances, an application will—normally be refused where the applicant has a conviction for an offence such as:
 - Rape
 - Assault by penetration
 - Offences involving children or vulnerable adults
 - Sexual assault
 - Indecent assault
 - Exploitation of prostitution
 - Grooming, Trafficking for sexual exploitation or other sexual exploitation related offences
 - Possession of indecent photographs, child pornography etc.
 - Or any sex or indecency offence that was committed in the course of employment as a taxi or PHV driver
 - Or any similar offences (including attempted or conspiracy to commit) offences which replace the above.

- 8.3 Before an application is allowed, will be considered an applicant should be free of conviction for at least 10 years (or at least 5 years must have passed since the completion of the sentence, whichever is longer), if he/she has a conviction for an offence such as:
 - Indecent exposure
 - Soliciting (kerb crawling)
 - Or any similar offences (including attempted or conspiracy to commit).
- 8.4 In addition to the above the licensing authority will not normally grant a licence to any applicant who is currently on the Sex Offenders Register.
- A licence will not normally be granted if an applicant has more than one conviction for a sexual/indecency offence.

9. Dishonesty

- 9.1 A licensed PHV or taxi driver is expected to be a trustworthy person. They deal with cash transactions and valuable property may be left in their vehicles. The widespread practice of delivering unaccompanied property is indicative of the trust that business people place in licensed drivers. Moreover, it is comparatively easy for a dishonest driver to defraud the public by demanding more than the legal or agreed fare, etc. Drivers may well deal with customers who are vulnerable or intoxicated and potentially easily confused. For all these reasons, a serious view is taken of any conviction involving dishonesty.
- 9.2 In general, a minimum period of 3 years free of conviction or at least 3 years from completion of sentence (whichever is longer) should be required before granting a licence. Offences involving dishonesty include:
 - theft
 - burglary
 - fraud
 - benefit fraud
 - handling or receiving stolen goods
 - forgery
 - conspiracy to defraud
 - obtaining money or property by deception
 - other deception
 - taking a vehicle without consent
 - and any similar offences
 - Or any similar offences (including attempted or conspiracy to commit) offences which replace the above

- 9.3 A licence will not normally be granted if an applicant has more than one conviction for a dishonesty offence.
- 9.4 Applicants or existing licence holders that are found to have intentionally misled the Council, or lied as part of the application process, will not normally be issued with a licence.

10. Drugs

- 10.1 A serious view is taken of any drug related offence. Taking drugs and driving poses an obvious risk to public safety, whilst applicants who have convictions for the supply of drugs should be treated with considerable concern. The nature and quantity of the drugs, whether for personal use or supply are issues which should be considered.
- 10.2 A licence will not normally be granted where the applicant has a conviction for an offence related to the supply of drugs and has not been free of conviction for 5 years. Because of the nature of a driver's involvement with the public, a licence will not be granted where the applicant has a conviction for an offence related to the supply of drugs.
- 10.3 A licence will not normally be granted where the applicant has more than one conviction for offences related to the possession of drugs and has not been free of conviction for 5 years.
- 10.4 An applicant who has an isolated conviction for an offence related to the possession of drugs (other than for supply) within the last 3-5 years may be granted a licence once the following time periods have passed since the completion of any sentence, but consideration should be given to the nature and quantity of the drugs.

Class B/C 3 years Class A 5 years

- 10.5 If there is evidence of persistent drugs use, misuse or dependency a specialist medical examination (in accordance with DVLA Group 2 medical standards) may be required before the licence is granted. If the applicant was an addict then they would normally be required to show evidence of 5 years free from drug taking after detoxification treatment.
- 10.6 A licence will not normally be granted if an applicant has more than one conviction for a drugs related offence.

11 Driving offences involving the loss of life

11.1 A very serious view is to be taken of any applicant who has been convicted of a driving offence that resulted in the loss of life.

Unless there are exceptional circumstances a licence will not normally be granted where the applicant has a conviction for an offence such as:

- Causing death by dangerous driving
- Causing death by careless driving whilst under the influence of drink or drugs
- Causing death by driving: unlicensed, disqualified or uninsured drivers
- or any similar offences

Drink driving/driving under the influence of drugs/using a mobile phone whilst driving/dangerous driving

- 12.1 As licensees are professional vocational drivers, a serious view is taken of convictions for driving, or being in charge of a vehicle while under the influence of drink or drugs. An isolated incident would not necessarily debar an applicant from proceeding on the restoration of his DVLA driving licence but he should be warned as to the significant risk to his licence status in the event of re offending. Normally at least 3 years, after the restoration of the driving licence following a drink/drug drive conviction should elapse before an application will be considered. If there is any suggestion that the applicant is alcohol or drug dependent, a satisfactory special medical report must be provided before the application can be allowed to proceed. More than one conviction for these offences raises serious doubts as to the applicant's fitness to drive the public and a licence will not be granted. In the case of an isolated offence, at least 5 years after the restoration of the driving licence following drink/drug driving conviction should elapse before an application will be granted. If there is any suggestion that the applicant is alcohol or drug dependent, a satisfactory special medical report must be provided before the application can be granted. An application will normally be refused where the applicant has a conviction for driving/being in charge under the influence which does not result in a disqualification within two years of the date of application.
- 12.2 Applicants should also be aware of the serious risk posed by driving whilst using a mobile phone. There is a substantial body of research (see for instance http://www.rospa.com/rospaweb/docs/advice services/road safety/drivers/mobile-phone report.pdf) which shows that drivers who use a mobile phone suffer physical and cognitive distraction which means they:
 - are much less aware of what's happening on the road around them
 - fail to see road signs
 - fail to maintain proper lane position and steady speed
 - are more likely to 'tailgate' the vehicle in front

- react more slowly, take longer to brake and longer to stop
- are more likely to enter unsafe gaps in traffic
- feel more stressed and frustrated.
- 12.3 There is evidence to show that drivers who use a mobile phone have slower reaction times than those who have consumed up to the legal alcohol limit. In light of this, an equally serious view should be taken of convictions for driving whilst using a mobile phone as for driving under the influence of drink or drugs.
- 12.4 A licence will not normally be granted if an applicant has more than one conviction for an offence of driving under the influence of drink or drugs or whilst using a mobile phone.
- 12.5 A serious view is also taken of convictions for dangerous driving. A licence will not be granted where an applicant has a conviction for dangerous driving unless the applicant can demonstrate that at least 10 years has passed since the return of the driving licence and that since that date they have been free from conviction (including fixed penalty tickets)

13 Licensing offences

- 13.1 Certain offences under taxi legislation such as plying for hire, overcharging and refusing to carry disabled persons would normally prevent a licence being granted or renewed until a period of 3 years has passed since the conviction.
- 13.2 A licence will not normally be granted if an applicant has more than one conviction for a licensing related offence.
- 14 Insurance, Use of Mobile Phone whilst driving and other motoring offences not otherwise specifically referred to in this policy
- 14.1 A serious view will be taken of convictions of driving or being in charge of a vehicle without insurance. An isolated incident in the past will not necessarily stop a licence being granted provided he/she has been free of conviction for 3 years however strict warning should be given as to future behaviour.
- 14.2 A licence will not normally be granted if an applicant has more than one conviction for an insurance related offence.
- 14.2 An operator found guilty of aiding and abetting the driving of passengers for hire and reward whilst without insurance will normally have his operators' licence revoked immediately and be prevented from holding a licence for at least three years.

- 14.3 There is evidence to show that drivers who use a mobile phone have slower reaction times than those who have consumed up to the legal alcohol limit. In light of this, an equally serious view will be taken of convictions for driving whilst using a mobile phone.
- 14.4 As they carry members of the public there is an expectation that applicants/licensed drivers will have good driving records. The driver record will be considered carefully. Consideration will be given to the date, nature and the number of penalty points attached to the offence. Isolated driving offences will not in itself preclude an applicant from being licensed. Applicants whose record discloses 9 or more penalty points will be referred to the Public Protection Sub-Committee for consideration.

15 Outstanding charges or summonses

- 15.1 If the individual is the subject of an outstanding charge or summons their application can continue to be processed, but the application will need to be reviewed at the conclusion of proceedings.
- 15.2 If the outstanding charge or summons involves a serious offence and the individual's conviction history indicates a possible pattern of unlawful behaviour or character trait, then in the interests of public safety the application may be put on hold until proceedings are concluded or the licence may be refused.

16 Non-conviction information

- 16.1 If an applicant has, on more than one occasion, been arrested or charged, but not convicted, for a serious offence which suggests he could be a danger to the public, consideration should be given to refusing the application. The Council will also take into account situations and circumstances that have not led to a conviction. This will include acquittals, circumstances in which convictions were quashed due to misdirection to the jury, circumstances where the decision was taken not to prosecute, situations where the person has been arrested and bailed but not yet charged and complaints from the public. In considering the most appropriate action to take in relation to non-conviction information/complaints the credibility of both the witness/complainant and the licence holder will be taken into account. Consideration will be given to whether complaints received demonstrate a pattern of conduct which causes concern.
- 16.2 If an applicant/licence holder has been arrested or charged but not convicted of a serious offence which suggests that they could be a danger to the public consideration should be given to refusing the application. Such offences will include violent and/or sexual offences or allegations of driving a vehicle under the influence of alcohol or drugs.

- 16.3 Licence holders will be referred to the Public Protection Sub-Committee where it is clear that their behaviour is not influenced by verbal or written warnings administered by Licensing Enforcement Officers.
- 16.4 In assessing the action to take, the safety of the travelling public must be the paramount concern.

17 Cautions

17.1 Admission of guilt is required before a caution can be issued. Every case will be considered on its own merits including the details and nature of the offence. Cautions must be declared on the application form. Existing drivers should notify the Licensing Service within 7 days of a caution being accepted.

18 Licences issued by other licensing authorities

- 18.1 Applicants who hold a licence with one licensing authority should not automatically assume that their application will be granted by another. Each case will be decided on its own merits.
- 18.2 Licensees who are licensed by multiple authorities are expected to inform all such authorities of the authorities that they are licensed by and to advise each authority of any changes in this respect; and should expect those authorities to share information regarding their conduct and to take it into account as appropriate.

19 Summary

- 19.1 To summarise, a criminal history in itself may not automatically result in refusal and a current conviction for a serious crime need not bar an applicant permanently from becoming licensed. As the preceding paragraphs indicate, in most cases, an applicant would be expected to remain free from conviction for 3 to 10 years, according to circumstances, before an application can be considered. However, there may be occasions when an application can be allowed before 3 years free from conviction have elapsed.
- 19.2 Any person who has committed an offence and has to wait before an application is positively considered is more likely to value their licence and act accordingly.
- 19.3 While it is possible that an applicant may have a number of convictions that, individually, meet the above guidelines, the overall offending history must be considered when assessing an applicant's suitability to be licensed. A series of offences over a period of time is more likely to give cause for concern than an isolated minor conviction. Obviously some discretion can be afforded if an offence disclosed is isolated

and there are mitigating circumstances, but the overriding consideration is the protection of the public.



Appendix 5(b)

Sharon Davies

From:

Licensing

Sent:

05 December 2017 16:47

To:

Sharon Davies

Subject:

FW: Licensing Policy

From:

Sent: 04 December 2017 19:13

To: Licensing

Subject: Licensing Policy

To who it may concern,

The amendments to licensing policy written in red signify a more urgent sense of duty to the public to protect people from drivers deemed unfit and improper persons. To safeguard the public the wording of licensing policy is more clear to define the parameters and interpretation of licensing laws.

This raised sense of duty to the public is positive for the innocent victim of soliciting or kerb crawling, for example, a rogue Taxi Driver

trying to persuade a potential victim to enter his or her cab. However, the nature of taxi driving has two stories to tell with endless crimes and physical and mental abuse to drivers trying to make a living over the years.

Austerity has decimated public services. Also clamping down on state funds can lead to increased drink and drug abuse.

I hope this increased sense of duty to the public in licensing laws has within it a mechanism; that equal weighting in punishment is given to particular crime scenes, and importantly; the retribution in sentencing serves justice.

At the end of the day anyone can be a victim. Taxi drivers are victims of violence or are the benefactors of violence simply in self defence.

Regards

The amendments are certainly clearer than before to the existing licensing policy which is an improvement and would raise the bar in dealing with unfit or improper people be it taxi drivers or members of the general public.

Sharon Davies

From:

Licensing

Sent:

08 December 2017 13:11

To: Subject:

Sharon Davies FW: licensing policy

Hi Sharon

Ryan says we are to send responses to the letter sent re proposed Policy changes on to you.

Regards Ryan

From:

Sent: 08 December 2017 12:30

To: Licensing

Subject: licensing policy

These amendments are positive the more the better

to protect public and driver alike.

http://www.blackpool.gov.uk/EmailDisclaimer/ This message has been scanned for inappropriate or malicious content as part of the Council's e-mail and Internet policies.

Blackpool Council on behalf of the Domestic Abuse & Interpersonal Violence Partnership has become White Ribbon Accredited and pledges to never to commit, condone, or remain silent about violence against all victims in all its forms regardless of their gender, age, race, religion, class and sexual orientation. https://www.whiteribbon.org.uk/